1962

# Kennecott Copper Corporation Employees et al v. Department of Employment Security of the Industrial Commission of Utah : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

#### A. STATEMENT OF THE CASE

The Claimant Appellant union members who worked at Kennecott Copper Corporation made timely requests for unemployment compensation during the period the Electrical Union was on strike at their employer, Kennecott Copper Corporation, commencing on August 13, 1961; these requests were denied.

## B. DISPOSITION OF THE CASE BEFORE THE INDUSTRIAL COMMISSION OF UTAH

The Unemployment Compensation Division issued a determination to the appellants above denying unemployment benefits for an indefinite period beginning August 13, 1961. That denial of benefits was affirmed after timely notices of appeal and subsequent hearing before the Unemployment Appeals Section of the Industrial Commission of Utah, and before the Board of Review of the Department of Employment Security of the Industrial Commission of Utah.

## C. RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

The Appellant Claimant herein seeks to have the Order of the Industrial Commission of Utah affirming the appeals Referee in the above-entitled case reversed, and the appellant claimant union members be ordered eligible to receive unemployment compensation for the period of the Electrical Strike beginning August 13, 1961, and ending September 8, 1961.

## D. STATEMENT OF FACTS

The following portion of the facts of this case were stipulated to by the parties hereto: (ROO46)

On the morning of Thursday, August 17, 1961, at approximately 6:00 o'clock A.M., the International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers commenced a strike against the Kennecott Copper Corporation, Utah Copper Division. Prior to that time, production operations at the mine had been on a full-scale basis. The claimants were employed by Kennecott Copper Corporation and are represented, for bargaining purposes, by the follow-

ing labor unions who, at the time of the strike, had reached a contract settlement with the employer as follows:

1. Office Employees International Union, Local 286, had reached a contract settlement.
2. International Association of Machinists, Lodge 568, had reached a contract settlement.
3. International Union of Mine, Mill and Smelter Workers, Local 485, had reached a contract settlement.
4. Brotherhood of Locomotive Firemen and Enginemen Local 844, had not reached a contract settlement, but negotiations continued.

Generally, workers in the Claimant Unions did not work on the 7:00 o'clock A.M. shift the morning of the strike and immediately subsequent to 7:00 o'clock A.M., there was a stoppage of work in Kennecott Copper Corporation mine which became a complete stoppage on the next day, August 18, 1961. During the period of the strike, the one striking union had pickets at all the main entrances to the company's mine.

It was stipulated "The operations of all segments of the Utah Copper Division are so integrated as to make the continuous flow of production dependent upon each other. A stoppage of the flow of ore from the mine to the mill, or a stoppage in the ore haulage operations would, within a short time, shut down the entire operations." (R0047)

On September 8, 1961, the strike ended. The Electrical Union withdrew its pickets, returned to work with

the other unions, the stoppage was ended and full scale operations at the mine were resumed.

## STATEMENT OF POINTS

1. THE BOARD OF REVIEW ERRED AS A MATTER OF LAW AND FACT IN DENYING THE CLAIMANTS BENEFITS BY HOLDING:

A. "THE STRIKE ACCOMPANIED BY THE WITHHOLDING OF SERVICES BY THE APPELLANTS WAS THE DIRECT AND IMPELLING CAUSE OF THE WORK STOPPAGE..."

B. "THE PREPONDERANCES OF THE TESTIMONY INDICATES THAT REGULARLY SCHEDULED WORK WAS AVAILABLE TO THE APPELLANTS".

II. THE OPERATION OF KENNECOTT COPPER CORPORATION IN UTAH IS AN INTEGRATED OPERATION SO THAT A CONTINUOUS FLOW OF PRODUCTION IS DEPENDENT UPON EACH OTHER OPERATION.

III. THERE WAS NO WORK AVAILABLE FOR CLAIMANTS AND APPELLANTS DURING THE PERIOD OF THE STRIKE SINCE KENNECOTT COPPER CORPORATION WAS UNABLE TO CONTINUE ITS OPERATIONS DURING THE PERIOD THE ELECTRICAL UNIONS WERE ON STRIKE.

IV. THE CLAIMANTS REPRESENTED BY THE SUBJECT LOCAL UNIONS DID NOT PARTICIPATE IN THE STRIKE OF THE ELECTRICAL WORKERS UNION OF AUGUST 17, 1961.

V. THE UNEMPLOYMENT OF THE CLAIMANTS WAS NOT A MATTER OF LAW DUE TO A WORK STOPPAGE WHICH EXISTED BECAUSE OF A STRIKE INVOLVING HIS GRADE, CLASS OR GROUP OF WORKERS, AT THE KENNECOTT COPPER CORPORATION MINE.

## ARGUMENT

THE BOARD OF REVIEW ERRED AS A MATTER OF LAW AND FACT IN DENYING THE CLAIMANTS BENEFITS BY HOLDING:

A. "THE STRIKE ACCOMPANIED BY THE WITHHOLDING OF SERVICES BY THE APPELLANTS WAS THE DIRECT AND IMPELLING CAUSE OF THE WORK STOPPAGE..."

The record indicates only one direct and impelling cause of the work stoppage. That cause was the strike of the Electrical Union. At no place does the record indicate that Kennecott Copper Corporation could operate without the services of the striking union.

The only substantiation for the necessary premise that the mine could operate without the striking union is the statement of Mine Superintendent Kerr wherein he testified that the instructions he had were to operate as usual.

His testimony indicates as follows from direct and cross-examination:

Direct: Work schedules were posted (R0100) for the men.

Cross-Examination: The work schedules were the

last places up and would have had to be modified or drastically changed. (R0115)

Direct: There had been no announcement that the company did not intend to operate. (R0100)

Mr. Nick A. Yengich and Chris Goris both testified to a meeting by a Mr. Goff of the Company who told the representatives of the other non-striking crafts that there would be a stoppage Monday or Tuesday. (R0111)

Direct: Mr. Kerr testified that there were employees who were given assignments, turned them down and left the job and their reasons for leaving were unknown to him. (R0101)

Cross-Examination: Mr. Kerr admitted that he had no personal knowledge of the men that reported for work, but rather the supervisors had checked for him. (R0103) Further, that he had no knowledge of what was said to the employees or who they were. (R0104)

Direct: Mr. Kerr testified that during the strike the company contracted outside the mine for electrical work and quite a bit of the work was done by supervisors. (R0103)

Cross-Examination: Mr. Kerr testified that he had no knowledge of the amount of outside contracting done by the mine or what arrangements were made . . . (R0111)

In light of the applicable statutes, it is difficult to find basis for a denial of benefits in the testimony of Mr. Kerr.

In the United Steelworkers v. Board of Review of Ind. Comm., 383 P2 116 (Utah 1962), Talking about the same statutes as is question here, UCA 1953, 35-4-5:

35-4-5: "*Ineligibility for benefits.* - -An individual shall not be ineligible for benefits or for purposes of establishing a waiting period."

35-4-5 (d) "For any week in which it is found by the commission that his unemployment is due to a stoppage of work which exists because of a strike involving his grade, class, or group of workers at the factory or establishment at which he is or was last employed.

(1) If the commission, upon investigation, shall find that a strike has been formented by a worker of any employer, none of the workers of the grade, class or group of workers of the individual who is found to be a party to such plan, or agreement to foment a strike, shall be eligible for benefits; provided, however, that if the commission, upon investigation of any employer to conform to the provisions of any law of the State of Utah or of the United States pertaining to hours, wages or other conditions of work such strike shall not render the workers ineligible for benefits.

(2) If the commission upon investigation, shall find that the employer, his agent, or representative, has conspired, planned, or agreed with any of his workers, their agents, or representatives to foment a strike, such strike shall not render the workers ineligible for benefits."

This Court said:

"It was the intent of the legislature to deny unemployment compensation to members of striking groups."

Insofar as ascertainable, we have found no case creating a presumption that if a member of a non-striking union does not work during a strike, it is because he has refused to cross a picket line and is participating. If there is such a presumption, certainly the appeals system is a nullity and we have an irrefutable cause and effect sequence judicially established, which says, if there are picket lines and the employer who is the subject of the strike shuts down, all employees who work for that plant are irrevocably denied benefits because they are participating.

This is contrary to the pronouncement of this Court in *Olof N. Nelson Construction Co. v. Industrial Commission*, 243 P2 951, Utah, 1942, when in construing the subject statute the Court says:

“As we pointed out in the *Lexes* case, the declared policy of the Unemployment Reserve Law, as it was called in 1953, is to establish financial reserves for the benefit of persons unemployed through no fault of their own. The provisions of the statute disqualifying employees from unemployment compensations is to prevent workers from obtaining benefits when there is work available which they decline to accept.”

It is, therefore, incumbent in any appeal on this subject that the question to be answered is simply why were the men out of work? Were they participating in the strike or was there no work available because of the strike?

As previously stated, the record indicates only one direct and impelling cause of the work stoppage, that of

the electrical strike. The volumptuous testimony in that respect is discussed in the following:

THE BOARD OF REVIEW ERRED AS A MATTER OF LAW AND FACT IN DENYING THE CLAIMANTS BENEFITS BY HOLDING:

B. "THE PREPONDERANCES OF THE TESTIMONY INDICATES THAT REGULARLY SCHEDULED WORK WAS AVAILABLE TO THE APPELLANTS."

The record indicates a multitude of reasons why the employees belonging to the claimant unions could not work on the day in question because of the Electrical Unions' strike. While there is a complete void on the question of picket lines as a cause for the failure of the men to report to work as hereinafter discussed, the record also indicates no work was available to appellants.

Arthur D. Bently, Business Manager of the International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers, Local 1081, the striking union (R0053) on direct and cross-examination disclosed that the electrical union had no jurisdiction over the other unions. (R0056) The twenty-six supervisory personnel (R0057) in the electrical field that were available to Kennecott Copper Corporation could not do the work of the 200 electricians out on strike. (R0043) That position was substantiated by the following examples: To do the work of the 200 electricians, twenty-six supervisory personnel were available, only sixteen of the twenty-six were classified as journeymen electricians (R0059) and of the sixteen supervisors available, only thirteen had the physical qualifications for the duties of electricians. Further, many of the remaining thirteen

would not be qualified to perform all facets of the operation. Only nine of the supervisors would qualify for the duties of linemen and of the nine, only five (R0060) could climb with hooks as required by that job. (R0061)

In the central traffic system which was necessary for the safety of the operations at all times (R0094) only *one* supervisor was qualified to handle that job which was necessary on a three-shift, 24-hour basis. (R0090)

There was no electrical supervisor who was qualified to do all the parts of the armature winding operation for engines; (R0062) while in one month, two hundred engines went through the machine shop for electrical and mechanical repairs; but there was only a total of seventy-three to keep the mine operating so that these repairs were an absolute necessity.

The record indicates that some members of the subject unions did go to work and were turned away by the company because there was no work available; (R0072, R0078), that others did not report at all because of television broadcasts advising no work available; (R0080) because the custom and policy of Kennecott Copper Corporation had always been in the event of a strike in some of the unions, no work would be available for the remaining unions; (R0086, R0091) because of the traffic jam resulting from the electrician's strike (R0078, R0080, R0090) and finally and predominantly because the Kennecott Copper Corporation mine could not operate without the electrical union members on the job so that *no work was available* to the members of the non-striking crafts. (R0068, R0070, R0075, R0082, R0088, R0094, R0097)

The company maintained that it intended to have the mine operations as close to normal as possible, (R0100) but admittedly did not know if it could or not (R0111); work schedules were posted but again admittedly, they were not applicable to the conditions as they existed after the electrical strike (R0114) and finally the company admitted that the 200 electricians were necessary for normal operations. (R0110)

Although Kennecott Copper Corporation had authority to discipline employees in the event of failure to report for work as scheduled, (R0112) at no time did Kennecott Copper Corporation take action against any of the claimant union members for not reporting to work as scheduled and, excepting two isolated cases, at no time were the employees advised or requested to come to work; rather, the claimant employees were advised by television, letters and the newspaper as shown in Respondent's Exhibit "A" (R0014) and Appellant's Exhibits No. 3 (R0017) and No. 4 (R0018) that the electrical union had caused the stoppage and no work was available. The work stoppage was the direct result of the electrical strike.

## II. THE OPERATION OF KENNECOTT COPPER CORPORATION IN UTAH IS AN INTEGRATED OPERATION SO THAT A CONTINUOUS FLOW OF PRODUCTION IS DEPENDENT UPON EACH OTHER OPERATION.

This case before the Court represents an interesting paradox. In the prior case before this Court, *United Steelworkers v. Board of Review of Ind. Comm.* 383 P2 116, the respondent argued and this Court held:

“With ample justification, the Appeals Referee found that the operations of all segments of the Utah Copper Division are so integrated as to make the continuous flow of production dependent upon each other.

A stoppage of the flow of ore from the mine to the mills or a stoppage in the ore haulage operation would immediately shut down the entire operation.

... Furthermore, it was apparent, because of the integrated nature of the operations that resumption of normal operations could not be effected until all the striking unions reached a settlement with the company.”

Since all portions of the mine were integrated and interdependent, one upon the other, if all were not working, the mine could not work and in effect each union was an absolute necessity for mine operation. There was no work available if one union was on strike.

Now, in the instant case, the opposite situation presents itself. One union is on strike, the others are not, but now, in spite of the integrated nature of the operations which is stipulated (R0109, R0047), in spite of the fact that the operation at the Kennecott Copper Corporation Mine was unchanged (R0109) and in spite of the holding of this Court, this year, in the Steelworkers case above, now the contention is presented that the mine could operate without one union group. The only inference to be drawn from the above is that if necessary, to deny benefits in the present case, the Industrial Commission is ready to reverse its prior contention and

find the facts as most beneficial to its point of view at any given time. That last year each union was necessary to the Kennecott Copper Corporation operation and so benefits were to be denied if one union remained on strike after the remaining settle, because there was no work available for the others. Now a year or so later, we find the exact opposite conclusion from the same fact situation, that each union is not necessary so benefits will be denied if one union strikes since there was work available for the other units. This premise is refuted by the record and prior holding of this Court.

It is submitted that the above represents a classic dilemma situation for the Kennecott Copper Corporation Unions who, on one hand, are denied benefits by the Industrial Commission of Utah and affirmed by this Court because each union is necessary in the integrated operation, and the next year have a denial of benefits for the exact opposite reason that the mine could run without one of the integrated groups, the Electrical Union, because each union is not essential.

If the record is resplendent in any one fact, it is the unanimity of opinion of the correctness of the decision in the United Steelworkers case from this Court.

Mr. Dean Kerr, Mine Operations Superintendent, admitted the electrical union was necessary to normal operations. (R100) Each of the other witnesses representing the Appellant Unions some of which had in excess of twenty and thirty years experience at the mine (R0087, R0074) all testified that the mine could not operate without the electricians (R0068, R0070, R0075, R0082, R0088, R0094, R0097). And to refute that precept the only evidence offered by the Respondent was the testimony of

the mine superintendent, Kerr. He did not know if the job could have been done but they intended operations as close to normal as possible. (R0111)

An interesting question presented itself if the following is considered: The Electrical Union was on strike; the testimony of Jesus Flores indicated that there was no work available for the machinists. (R0072) Mr. Raymond Larsen, another machinist, indicated that he had been advised by his foreman, John Edwards, that "There was nothing to do." (R0078)

In light of the Steelworkers case which says that the mine cannot function without one union group, it is difficult to reconcile that case with the present one where, without contravention, the record shows at least two groups, the electricians and the machinists, not in a position to work. The matter must, of necessity, compound itself further and further since each of the other groups would suffer an additional impairment without the machinists as well as the electricians. For example, machinists were an every-day necessity for the engineers to keep their engines running. (R0062) The electrical strike must, of necessity, result in the snow-balling effect just described resulting in a work stoppage caused by the strike.

The above testimony is refuted by one witness, Mr. Kerr, the mine superintendent, who says they would get along somehow.

III. THERE WAS NO WORK AVAILABLE FOR CLAIMANTS AND APPELLANTS DURING THE PERIOD KENNECOTT COPPER CORPORATION WAS UNABLE TO CONTINUE ITS OPERATION

## DURING THE PERIOD THE ELECTRICAL UNIONS WERE ON STIKE.

Each union in turn advised the Referee of the specific reasons why work was not available for his particular labor group without the services of the electricians at the mine.

Miles Gaythwait, an engineer and member of the Brotherhood of Locomotive Firemen and Enginemen, (R0088) testified that without the C T C System, the trains stand still. (R0089) After the strike there was one man available who was qualified to work in that system (R0061) which operates on three eight-hour shifts every day. Members of each claimant union testified in turn that there could be no work available with the electricians on strike. David Weidner of the Office Employees International Union, Local 286, testified that the electricians were on strike and so there would be no work available. (R0075) Mr. Raymond Larsen of the International Association of Machinists, Lodge 568, testified that he was advised by his foreman, John Edwards, that there was no work and nothing doing and so after working 4 hours, he was sent home. (R0078) Chris Goris of the same unions stated further that electricity was necessary to the operations of Kennecott Copper Corporation. (R0083) Mr. Joe Despenza of the International Union of Mine, Mill and Smelter Workers, Local 485, testified that the mine could not function more than a couple of days without the electricians. (R0097)

The only statement to the contrary in the whole proceeding was Mr. Kerr, whose bias was certainly in

favor of denial of benefits. If everytime one union strikes at Kennecott Copper Corporation, each other union member is denied benefits, that without doubt, will give management at Kennecott Copper Corporation an unfair advantage to compel settlement with striking unions.

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