1962

Kennecott Copper Corporation Employees et al v. Department of Employment Security of the Industrial Commission of Utah : Defendants' Brief

Utah Supreme Court

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

ARGUMENT

POINT ONE

1 THE FINDINGS OF FACT OF THE APPEALS REFEREE AS AFFIRMED BY THE BOARD OF REVIEW WHICH ARE CLAIMED TO BE IN ERROR IN APPELLANT'S POINTS OF ARGUMENT 1 THROUGH 3 ARE SUPPORTED BY EVIDENCE AND ARE, THEREFORE, CONCLUSIVE.

Section 35-4-10(i), Utah Code Annotated 1953, second paragraph, provides in part:

“ . . . In any judicial proceeding under this section the findings of the Commission and the Board of Review as to the facts if supported by evidence shall be conclusive and the jurisdiction of said court shall be confined to questions of law . . . ”

This Court, following a long line of workmen's compensation cases involving similar language, has consistently from time to time ruled that where the findings of the Commission and Board of Review are supported by evidence they will not be disturbed. See *Ralph E. Child vs. Board of Review of the Industrial Commission of Utah, Department of Employment Security*, 332 P. 2d 928, 8 Utah 2d 239; *Creameries of America, Inc. vs. The Industrial Commission of Utah* and *Robert L. Foss*, 102 P. 2d 300, 98 Utah 36; *Employees of Lion Coal Corporation at Wattis, Utah vs.*

The Industrial Commission of Utah and the Lion Coal Corporation, 111 P. 2d 797, 100 Utah 207; Teamsters, Chauffeurs and Helpers of America vs. Orange Transportation Company, 296 P. 2d 291, 5 Utah 2d. 45. See also Outboard Marine and Manufacturing Company vs. Gordon, 403 Ill. 518, 87 N.E. 2d 619, in which the Supreme Court said that it would not disturb findings of fact of an administrative agency unless they are manifestly against the weight of evidence or unless there is no evidence to support them. See also Stillman vs. Board of Review, 161 Pa. Super 569, 56 A. 2d 380, in which the Court held that it could not disturb findings of fact of the unemployment compensation Board of Review where they were supported by evidence even though the record may contain other competent evidence which, had it been accepted by the Board, would have justified different findings, nor may the Superior Court substitute its findings for those of the Board.

Before we discuss the evidence and testimony which support the findings, we wish to point out that the record contains a stipulation of parties that the Kennecott Copper Corporation, Utah Copper Division, in Utah is an integrated operation. Therefore, the question of whether or not it is so integrated merits no argument on our part.

The findings that appellants withheld their services are amply supported by the stipulation of parties (R 0047) that for the most part the workers represented by the unions to which the appellants belonged did not re-

port for work on the shift commencing at 7:00 A.M., August 17, 1961. Witnesses for the appellants supported the stipulation as follows:

Testimony of Mr. Bentley (R 0070):

Answer: "To my knowledge there were very few people who went through the picket lines."
(R 0068)

Answer: " . . . There were some individuals who come and asked for passes.

Question: "Did you give them passes?"

Answer: "We told them we're on strike and we are advertising that we are on strike and that the purpose, that's the only legal thing we've got is to advertise we're on strike—a picket line advertises that you're on strike and we'd like everybody to abide by it."

Next, testimony of Mr. Flores (R 0073):

Question: "Why didn't you work?"

Answer: "Because I called my boss that morning when I heard there was a strike and asked if I'd go to work that day and he said that the day shift hadn't reported for work and he says if the strike isn't settled by 3:30 he says you won't be able to work either." (The day shift was the one starting at 7:00 A.M., August 17, 1961.)

Testimony of Mr. Weidner. He testified (R 0074, R 0075) that he saw pickets at the tunnel and the precipitation plant and decided to go home. He then testified as follows at R 0076:

Question: "Now, Mr. Weidner, you testified that you worked on the records of the precipitation plant.

Answer: "That's right.

Question: "As a matter of fact the precipitation plant operated during the strike, didn't it?

Answer: "I found that out, yes.

Question: "Do you recall the company asking the union to furnish some clerks to do some clerical work after the strike started?

Answer: "Will you state that again?

Question: "Do you recall a request coming from the company to the union for some clerks to work after the strike started? After the strike was going?

Answer: "Just clerks?

Question: "Yes.

Answer: "Yes.

Question: "Do you know what disposition was made of that request?

Answer: "None of them worked."

Testimony of Mr. Larsen (R 0078):

Answer: "I started to work. I went as usual and caught the work bus and rode up to the bus. We went up and got in the Bingham bus in the jam. The bus turned around and said they were going back down out of the jam, so I rode it back down and then I went home at that time."

(R 0079)

Question: "Mr. Larsen, prior to 7:30 or 8:00

o'clock, did you have any discussion with anyone about work?

Answer: "No, we didn't. In fact we didn't really think there would be a strike. We had heard rumors and one thing and another, but we didn't know anything about it until we got up to the picket line. In fact, we were quite surprised about it."

Next, testimony of Mr. Rawlings (R 0080):

Question: "Did you go to work that day?"

Answer: "I went with the anticipation of going but we were stopped just below the tram due to the congestion and we turned around and parked and waited around there oh, possibly for maybe an hour and we didn't see much activity so we turned around and went home."

Testimony of Mr. Goris (R 0084):

Answer: "You have to understand here that a country road leads to the entrance to the machine shop, it's on a hill, and the pickets were established at the bottom of the hill."

Question: "There were a few fellows down at the bottom of the hill and you didn't get up above there, did you?"

Answer: "No."

Testimony of Mr. Gaythwaite (R 0089):

Question: ". . . did any of the members of your local work after 7:00 a.m. on August 17?"

Answer: "Yes."

Question: "There were about nine that worked one or two days.

Answer: "One day, I think."

(R 0091)

The witness testifies:

Answer: "No, I got to correct you there. The nine men involved were men who have assignments to go to work at 5:45 in the morning in order to transport men in coaches to and from their respective places of work. Therefore, by going to work that early in the morning, they did not even know a strike was in progress, they did not see anyone, a picket sign or anything, therefore, they did render service to the company for that day."

Testimony of Mr. Dispenza (R 0099):

Question: "Did any of your group go through the lines and report to work?"

Answer: "Well, I think on the first day, I think there were a few."

In answer to a question as to whether or not he had been contacted by the company for arrangements for men to go to work at the precipitation plant on or about the time of the strike, Mr. Dispenza replied (R 0099):

Answer: "Subsequent to that time. If I might add, the only conversation on the day of the strike was with regards to the water switchers and this was a—I went to the company and I said as mayor of the town I was very interested in seeing that our people received water. They furnish us water, and I asked the company rep-

representatives if arrangements had been made for the water switchers to go to work, which has been the practice at all times in the case of a strike. The company said that they had not made any arrangements to get passes for those people and they weren't going to ask for any. However, if I wanted to ask them as mayor of the town that I could and I did this and I went to the IBEW and asked them as a spokesman of the city if they would allow these people to go to work so that we could have culinary water, which they did. At a later date the company, somebody in the company, I don't remember if it was Mr. Peterson or who it was, but he asked me if I would ask the IBEW for passes for the P.P. Plant workers to go to work. I told them that in the past it was always the—between the company and the striking unit to furnish the passes or who they would furnish the passes to. I have made mention to the company that if—I asked the company rather—if they wanted the guys to go to work at the plant. They said they did. Then I mentioned to the company that it should be their place, not mine, to go down and ask for passes for those people.”

Testimony of Mr. Kerr (witness for the Department) (R 0101):

Question: “Wait just a moment. There were more than nine reported for work?”

Answer: “Yes, quite a few.

Question: “They were given assignments?”

Answer: “As soon as they were given assignments, they left the property. There were others on the property.

Question: "Why? Did they say why?"

Answer: "I don't have their reasons why."

Question: "Now, what were their work assignments? Were they in their regular classification?"

Answer: "Yes."

The findings that regularly scheduled work was available to the appellants are substantially supported by the evidence.

The appellants argue that they failed to report for work because the company did not have work for them due to the fact that the electrical workers were on strike. Most of the witnesses for the appellants testified that in their opinion the company could not operate without the members of the IBEW and that there was no work for them. As we shall see from the following testimony, however, some of these same witnesses also testified that they could have worked at least for a day or two. At no time prior to the strike did the company commit any overt act or make any announcement which would indicate to the appellants that in the event of a strike the plant would be closed. To the contrary, the evidence supports the findings that work was available. Only after the 7:00 o'clock A.M. shift failed to report for work as scheduled were any of the appellants informed that the company could not operate as usual.

In the absence of an overt act on the part of the company which would lead appellants to believe that effective with the commencement of the strike the com-

pany would cease operations, we contend that the events following the appellants' refusal to report for work are not of particular importance. We hereafter set forth some of the testimony to support the findings that work was available and that no such overt act was committed.

Testifying for the appellants, Mr. Bentley, an officer of the IBEW, said (R 0053) :

“We have an open shop agreement.”

And later at R 0066 Mr. Bentley testifies:

“Well, we were well aware of the fact that when we went on strike that we were pitting our strength against Kennecott's strength. In other words, we were gambling. We were taking the calculated risk which we thought was a good risk that Kennecott would not be able to function without us. We realize that if they were able to replace us that they had the legal rights to go out and hire 200 official people to take our jobs, but we realized that due to the fact of the key positions that we held that Kennecott would not be able to operate without us. For that reason it would have been foolish for us to have went on strike if we weren't relatively certain that Kennecott would not be able to operate without us . . . ”

Mr. Kerr, mine operations superintendent, testified in cross-examination (R 0110) dealing with the question as to whether or not normal operations require the 200 electricians and said:

“Well, if we were without that group, we have as you well know, our supervisory force. We

also have the prerogative to contract out as much of this work as we please to maintain as near normal operation as we can, and we also may, if we have to, hire to replace that organization.

Question: "But you did none of these things here except for the amount of some work that you contract out.

Answer: "We contracted some out, yes.

Question: "Now during the period of this strike—let's get at it another way. You don't contend that normal operations could have been conducted with the 26 supervisors and the work that you contracted out.

Answer: "I won't contend one way or the other. All I can say is that it was our intention to maintain as near normal as we could.

Question: "What is your opinion as to how near normal you could come with those 26 supervisors?

Answer: "Well, we would have had to have been in the actual circumstances to be able to know, but my instructions from the management and my instructions to my supervisors were that we were going to maintain operations as best we could with whatever help we could get. And if we got a normal work force we'd have done our best to maintain as near normal operation as we could have, utilizing the three prerogatives that I just mentioned."

On direct examination of Mr. Kerr (R 0101):

Question: "Was there any production work done on the 17th?

Answer: "Yes, there was. When I got through

making assignments to those individuals who were on the property and reported for work, we had enough left over that extended work assignments to operate ore shovels and, I believe, seven trains.”

Question: “Then no men showed up for work that you didn’t provide work for?”

Answer: “That’s true.”

Mr. Kerr had previously testified supra that there were others who reported for work but when they were given assignments turned them down and left the job. At R 0103:

Question: “Was all necessary electrical work in view of the absence of actual operation crews done which could be done?”

Answer: “Yes.”

In light of the appellants’ contention that no work was available to them, let us examine the testimony of appellants’ witness, Mr. Dispenza, a member of the International Association of Mine, Mill and Smelter Workers Local 485. At R 0097 on direct examination:

Question: “How many men are covered by your contract of employment?”

Answer: “Between 1100 and 1200, I believe.”

Question: “If the—can the mine operate or function in the event that the electricians or any group are not available for work?”

Answer: “Can it function?”

Question: “Yes.

Answer: "For a short period of time it could. Not for very long.

Question: "How long would you say?"

Answer: "A matter of a couple of days."

The Referee and the Board of Review gave credence to the testimony of Mr. Kerr, the superintendent, that had the workers represented by Mr. Dispenza reported for work then the necessary electrical work would have been performed first by the use of the supervisors and then by contracting work out and hiring replacements for the members of the IBEW. Obviously the appellants by refusing to make themselves available for work were unwilling to put the matter of the company's ability to replace the electrical workers to an actual test. Instead, they preferred to support the strike of the electrical workers and then argue that the only reason they were not reporting to work was because work was not available. Certainly if such was their belief they would have worked the one or two days and then if the company had been unable to accomplish the electrical work as was necessary, their unemployment would actually have been then due to the fact that work was not available. In addition, working for the extra days would certainly have enabled the mill and smelter to continue working for an additional period of time before they ran out of ore. We call your attention to the testimony of the appellants' witness, Weidner, who testified that he worked on the records of the precipitation plant and respectfully call the Court's attention that the evidence in the record shows that the precipi-

tation plant operated during the strike. Mr. Weidner's work, therefore, as a matter of fact, continued but he was not available to do it.

Mr. Gaythwaite, a locomotive engineer, testifying for the appellants on cross-examination at R 0089:

Question: "As a matter of fact, some of the locomotives were operated during this strike, were they not?"

Answer: "Correct.

Question: "That meant the power was on.

Answer: "Correct.

Question: "It also meant, too, didn't it, that the Central Traffic Control System was operating?"

Answer: "By a supervisor, correct.

Question: "By a supervisor. Now after, did any of the members of your local work after 7 a.m. on August 17?"

Answer: "Yes.

Question: "There were about nine that worked one or two days.

Answer: "One day, I think.

Question: "Now these locomotives that you operate, they don't break down all at one time would they? As a matter of fact, they might not break down on any particular day. Isn't that true?"

Answer: "That's true, that's true.

Question: "They might run one day or two days.

Answer: "They might run a week or two weeks."

This was a strike by a maintenance group—only about 150 of 200 workers involved were doing skilled work. The company, according to the record, decided that it could replace them by the use of supervisors, new hires, and by the contracting of electrical work to concerns outside the plant.

The history of business is replete with instances where there are strikes of maintenance units or small production units and no work stoppages result inasmuch as the striking workers are replaced as is legally permissible under existing labor laws.

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